
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D AA G E N D AA G E N D AA G E N D A 
 

 
 

Committee - PARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINISH ISH ISH ISH 

GROUPGROUPGROUPGROUP 

Date & Time - Friday, 3 December, 2010 at 10.00am 

Venue - Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
 
 

Members 

Mr P.J. Duigan 
Mrs D.K.R. Irving 
Mrs S.M. Matthews (Chairman) 
Mr K. Martin 
 

Mr D.G. Mortimer 
Mrs P. Quadling 
Mr B. Rose 
Mrs P.A. Spencer 
 

 
 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 
 

 
 
 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 

REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE 

TELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONES    

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Wednesday, 24 November 2010  
 

 
Contact:  Member Services DDI (01362) 656381 or 656343 

e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk  or  julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Parking Task & Finish Group 
3 December 2010 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 3 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2010.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in the following items on the Agenda.   
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct requires that declarations include the 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest. 
  
 

 

5. CAR PARKING ISSUES IN SWAFFHAM  4 - 8 

 Report of the Director, Corporate Resources.  
 

 

6. MAP OF SWAFFHAM CAR PARKS (FOR INFORMATION)  9 

7. NEXT MEETING   

 To agree a date and time for the next meeting.  
 

 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

PARKING TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

Held on Thursday, 23 September 2010 at 12.15 pm in 
Dereham Room, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr P.J. Duigan 
Mrs D.K.R. Irving 
Mrs S.M. Matthews (Chairman) 
 

Mr K. Martin 
Mr D.G. Mortimer 
Mrs P.A. Spencer 
 

In Attendance  
Mark Broughton - Scrutiny Officer 
Sheila Cresswell - Committee Officer 

 
 Action By 

40/10 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)   
  
 The Scrutiny Officer indicated that there was a ‘Matter Arising’ in 

relation to Minute 38/10, 3.2.2 (School Land).  However he would 
bring this to the Group’s attention when considering the report.  
 
Subject to noting this, the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 
September 2010 were confirmed as a correct record and signed 
by the Chairman. 
  

 

41/10 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)   
  
 Apologies for absence had been received from Mr B. Rose and 

Mrs P. Quadling. 
  

 

42/10 FINAL REPORT - WATTON (AGENDA ITEM 5)   
  
 The Scrutiny Office (SO) introduced his report and confirmed that 

part of the land outside the school was owned by the Council and 
it was 
 

AGREED that this should be drawn to the attention of the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission as part of the Group’s 
final report, citing the possibility of future parking facilities 
there.  There were some trees on this land, but these were 
relatively young and could possibly be replaced with new 
plantings.   

 
Aside from this, the SO said that the recommendations in the final 
report were drawn up to be in line with the Group’s previous 
discussions and conclusions.  He noted that a Key should be 
added to the map at Appendix 4, indicating the location of each of 
the car parks.    
 
He also confirmed that the survey work by the children at Ashill 
Primary School had been acknowledged. 
 
There was brief discussion about the noticeboard at the Kittell 
Close car park.  Apparently if a car was parked immediately in 
front of this, it was very hard to read.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark 
Broughton 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark 
Broughton 

Agenda Item 1

1



Parking Task and Finish Group 
23 September 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
However, as the recommendation was for Kittell Close to be the 
town’s long stay car park, the SO was loathe to lose this parking 
slot.  On the assumption that the noticeboard belonged to the 
Town Council, it was felt that the onus more properly rested with 
them to move it to a more accessible position if they believed this 
to be a significant problem. 
 
With regard to the suggestion of parking along one side of the 
High Street only, he confirmed that the recommendation was for 
this to be sent forward to appropriate authorities for consideration 
and possible implementation.  The Council could only make 
recommendations to the appropriate bodies.  However, he also 
confirmed that there was a proposal for a review of progress in 
early summer 2011, to ensure that agreed recommendations were 
being taken forward. 
 
A Member asked if the relevant contacts at Norfolk County Council 
had been kept in the loop in terms of suggested proposals before 
the Group had reached its final conclusions.  He thought this 
would be particularly useful with respect to the forthcoming 
reviews of Swaffham, Dereham and Thetford.  If NCC were to 
receive copies of key documents at an early stage of discussion, 
they might be able to give useful feedback, especially if proposals 
would not be feasible in terms of implementation (e.g. because of 
legislation, or local historical anomalies, etc).   
 
The SO added that whilst the projected route was for the Group’s 
recommendations to go through the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission (O&SC) to Cabinet for approval, the O&SC had the 
right to make direct representations to outside bodies if it wished.  
It could also call relevant bodies to appear before the Commission 
if they failed to respond to requests for information, guidance or 
actual work – especially if the Council’s requests were based upon 
solid research, as was the case with work done by the Task & 
Finish Groups. 
 
Generally speaking it was in everyone’s interest for appropriate 
action to be taken, since there was increased awareness 
nowadays about public image. 
 
All the proposals in the Final Report which was attached to the 
Agenda were agreed as written, with the exception of noting that 
the word “one” should be inserted at Recommendation 8, to read:  
“…a full assessment of restricting parking to only one side of the 
High Street”. 
 
It was therefore RECOMMENDED that the proposals be taken 
forward to the O&SC for consideration and support. 
 
The Chairman concluded the Watton Review by expressing the 
Group’s thanks and appreciation to the SO for his excellent work 
on this project, and wishing him all the best for his new job.  
 
 

2



Parking Task and Finish Group 
23 September 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

43/10 FURTHER WORK AND NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEMS 6 
AND 7)  

 

  
 There was brief discussion about which of the three remaining 

towns (Swaffham, Dereham and Thetford) should be reviewed 
next.     
 
It was generally agreed that Thetford should be left until last as 
there was other ongoing work in terms of future planning for the 
town which would potentially impede any parking review at this 
time.  The Moving Thetford Forward Board was, in fact, already 
looking at parking and their work could end up overriding or 
duplicating any work covered by this Group. 
 
The Group noted the likely impact of the imminent departure of the 
SO.   His successor was not likely to be in post until later in the 
year and would need some time to get up-to-speed across the 
whole brief.   
 
It was therefore AGREED that the Group should aim for a meeting 
in late December or early January.  This should be to review 
where things were in terms of the recommendations made for 
Attleborough and Watton, as well as to plan the Group’s next 
review.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark 
Broughton’s 
successor 
 
  

 
 
The meeting closed at 11.50 am 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

3



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to the 
Parking Task & Finish Group – 3rd December 2010 

 
(Author: Teresa Smith – Member Support Officer (Projects)) 
 

Review of Parking in Swaffham 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is for the Group to agree the Terms of Reference (Appendix 1) 
and Project Plan (Appendix 2) and to set future dates. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the Task & Finish Group: 
2.1 Agree the terms of reference and the Project Plan (see Appendix 1 and 2) 

 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 The Parking Task and Finish Group was established under the direction of and 
reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission in 2009. 

 
3.1.2 The Group was charged with exploring issues relating to the Council’s own car parks 

in its market towns and subsequently a review has taken place for Attleborough and 
Watton. 

 
3.1.3 The Group is now focussing on the market town of Swaffham. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The investigation will be carried out the same way as both Attleborough and Watton 
have been. 

 
3.2.2 The purpose is to establish if any improvements can be made in respect of the car 

parking provision to Breckland residents, businesses and visitors. This will be carried 
out by:- 

 

• Liaising with stakeholders to discover any issues around parking within the 
town. The stakeholders are: Ward Representatives / Town & Parish Clerks of 
surrounding areas / Police / Highways / Doctors surgeries.  They will be 
contacted by letter, and then invited to attend a meeting to give their views 

 

• A public meeting will need to take place to discuss the parking issues. The 
date for this will need to be set.  It is proposed it is held in the Assembly 
rooms, Swaffham.  Publicity of this event will need to be carried out, and will 
take place through the local media, including the Swaffham & Watton Times, 
and our website. 

 
3.2.3 Furthermore, it is recommended the Group carry out a site visit at the outset. 
 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To agree the above recommendations. 

Agenda Item 5

4



3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 This Group has been tasked by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission to carry out 
the review of on and off street parking in Swaffham.  The Commission has asked 
that the final report be submitted on 24th March 2011 at the latest. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

None 

4.2 Financial  

None 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

6. Other Implications   [Insert statement or confirm ‘none’ as appropriate at each sub-
paragraph] 

a) Equalities: None 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006:  None 

d) Human Resources: None 

e) Human Rights: None 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Building safer and stronger communities 

7.2 Your Council, Your services 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Swaffham and surrounding parishes 

 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: Teresa Smith 
Telephone: 01362 656295 
Email: teresa.smith@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): 
None 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference 
Appendix 2 – Project Plan 

5



Appendix 1 

Overview & Scrutiny Commission 
 

Parking Task & Finish Group 
 
 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
To understand and review the purpose of the car parking service provided by Breckland 
Council whilst taking full account of associated issues such as on-street parking and parking 
provided by retailers, in Swaffham. 
 
The review should consider the following elements: 
 

Ø Charging/non-charging (parking orders) 
Ø Short and Long term parking 
Ø Residents parking permits 
Ø Enforcement resourcing 
Ø Level and range of default fines 
Ø Budgeting for the service – revenue and costs 
Ø Access to and within car parks 
Ø Physical condition of car parks – surfacing, marking of bays 
Ø Signage to and within car parks 
Ø Allocation of disabled bays 
Ø Accommodation of coach and lorry parking 
Ø Park and Ride 

 
 
Aim 
 
Through evidenced based assessment and evaluation, baseline information, site visits, 
stakeholder input and other relevant methods, to produce a report with recommendations as 
appropriate for each town to the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. 

6



Appendix 2 

Overview & Scrutiny Commission 
 

Parking – Task and Finish Group 
 

PROJECT PLAN 

 

Project Title Review of Car Parking in Breckland Towns (Swaffham) 
 

Project Manager Teresa Smith / Rory Ringer 
 

Project Background At its meeting on 26 March 2009 the Overview & 
Scrutiny Commission agreed that a task and finish group 
be formed to undertake a review of on and off street car 
parking in all five Breckland Towns. 
 

Project Objectives  To establish if any improvements can be made in 
respect of the car parking provision to Breckland 
residents, businesses and visitors. 
 

Project Outcomes 1. To establish the policy position in relation to off-street 
and on-street parking and identify any improvements 
in how the service is delivered, taking account of on-
street parking and retailer provided parking. 

 
2. The Task and Finish Group will undertake the review 

and report its findings and recommendation through 
the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and the 
Cabinet 
 

Scope Review of Car Parking in Breckland towns.  Attleborough 
and Watton having already been completed.   
 

Key Milestones 1. First Group meeting to agree Terms of Reference 
and consider baseline information – 3rd December 
2010 

2. Site Visits –  
3. Promotion of the review via local media –  
4. Consultation (Public Meeting) –  
5. Meeting with Stakeholders 
6. Draft Report to Parking Group –  
7. Final Report produced – 24th March 2011 
 

Background Research Council Policy, Best Value Review of Car parking (2001), 
Post BV Review Action Plan, agency agreements 
covering enforcement, information showing location of 
council car parks, short term parking orders, and 
maintenance budgets/spend revenue and costs. 
 

Resources TS/RR will co-ordinate the review.  Additional resource 
will be required from Member Services to provide a 
clerking service for meetings of the group.  A lead officer 
from Asset management team to provide 
technical/specialist knowledge and contribute by 
attending meetings as required. 
 

7



Appendix 2 

Possible witnesses and 
consultees for the review 

Rep from local chamber(s) of trade 
Norfolk Constabulary 
Norfolk County Council 
Asset Manager (Breckland Council) 
Corporate Project Manager (Breckland Council) 
Rep from local taxi and bus operators 
Reps from Town and relevant parish councils 
Reps from major retailers 
Other Norfolk local authorities 
 

Possible site visits 
 

To inspect Swaffham Car Parks  

Possible Consultation 
Methods to be adopted 

1. To possibly undertake sponsored research through a 
survey to be undertaken in Swaffham. 

 
2. Hold public meeting in Swaffham with invites sent to 

local town and parish councils and other relevant 
stakeholders. 
 

 
 
 

8



Agenda Item 6

9


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Car Parking Issues in Swaffham
	Terms of Ref
	Project Plan

	6 Map of Swaffham Car Parks (For Information)

